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THE LUBNY FIELD PHARMACY — THE FIRST PHARMACY
IN THE LEFT-BANK UKRAINE

IHouamok anmeunoi cnpasu ua Jlybenwuni crio nog’azamu 3 Meapcokum monacmupem. Ilicaa Ilonmascokoi
oumeu 1709 p., pociticoxkuii yap Ilempo I 3pobus kopomkouacHy 3ynutky y JIyonax. Buzione cmpameziune noaioxceHus
micma, bazamuil pociuHHULl c8im ma mpaouyii Meapcokoeo MoHacmups Hageau 1020 Ha OYMKY PO 3ACHY8AHH Mym
noboeoi anmexu, aka mo2na 0 3abesnevysamu JiKAMu GiliCbKA, WO OXOPOHANU Nig0eHb Oepicasu. Ha niocmasi peme-
JILHO20 BUBHEHHA APXIBHUX OOKYMEHMI8, MOJCHA cmeepoxcysamu, wo JIybenceka nonvosa anmexka 0yia nepuior
nonvosoto anmexoro Ha Jlisobepexcniil Yxpaini ma 3 uacom cmana yenmpom po3eumxy anmeyHoi cnpasu i Kyivmugy-
B8AHHA JIKAPCLKUX POCAUH 6 YbOMY PEIOHI.

Knrouosi cnosa: anmexa, Jlyonu.

Hauano anmeunozo oena ¢ JIybenckom kpae credyem cea3vieams ¢ nosgaenuem Meapckozo monacmuipa. Ilocne
Honmasckou 6umssr 1709 2., poccuiickuti yaps Ilemp | e nadoneo ocmanosuics 6 Jlyonax. Bvieoonoe cmpamezuue-
cKoe nonodicenue, 602amviil pacmumenbHbiid Mup, mpaouyuu Meapcko2o MoHacmelps Hageau €20 Ha MblCb 00 0CHOBA-
HUU Mym noiesoll anmexu 015 00ecneuusand 1eKapcmeamu 80UcCK, KOmopbsle OXpaHauu 1dichvle pybedcu cmpansl. Ha
OCHOBAHUU MWAMENbHO20 U3VHEHUs APXUBHBIX OOKYMEHMO8, MOJCHO ymeepoicdamy, umo JIybenckas noneeas anmexa
bvl1a nepeotl nonesoli anmexou Ha JlesobepedicHou Yxpaure u co epemenem cmana yeHMpOM pa3gUmMus anmeyHo20
0ena u KynbmueupoGaHus 1eKapcmeerHblX pacerull 6 ImMom PeuoHe.

Knroueeswvie cnosa: anmexa, JlyoHul.

The Lubny pharmacy inherited traditions of the Mhar’s monastery. After the Battle of Poltava in 1709, the Rus-
sian Tsar Peter | made a brief stay in Lubny. He noticed an advantageous strategic position of the city. Besides the rich
flora and traditions of the Mhar’s monastery suggested him an idea to establish a field pharmacy that could provide
troops guarding the south of the state with medicines. Archival documents show that the Lubny field pharmacy was the
first one on the Left-Bank Ukraine and eventually became the centre of pharmacy and cultivation of medicinal plants in

the region. Traditions of the Lubny pharmaceutical industry were revived in the Soviet times.
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Introduction. Lubny is one of the oldest
towns in our country. The history of Lubny
foundation is associated with the name of the
Kyivan Prince Volodymyr Svyatoslavych
[1;2]. The beginning of the pharmaceutical
business in Lubny is connected with the
Mhar’s monastery that was founded in 1619.
The traditions of the Mhar’s monastery were
inherited by the first in the Left Bank Ukraine
field pharmacy that was opened in 1733 by the
Senate order.

Objective. There is a field pharmacy in
Lubny. While studying, it became clear that
the history of its origin is connected with inter-
esting historical facts and even legends. The
convenient strategic location, climate, rich
flora of the region created favourable condi-
tions for the establishment of a pharmacy; and
these factors were decisive for its long exis-
tence and effective operation.

The aim of article: Based on the study
of archival documents and research literature,
we made an attempt to determine the date of
foundation of the Lubny field pharmacy, that is

controversial in the scientific literature. Accu-
rate information on the opening of the phar-
macy, after the Lubny archive was destroyed in
1944 during the Second World War, is almost
gone.

Materials and methods: research of pre-
served unique archive materials, study and
analysis of scientific literature.

There is a quite common opinion that
Peter | personally founded the Lubny phar-
macy. As a rule, history books on the origin
and development of medicine usually note that
Peter | founded the State field pharmacy, bo-
tanical and pharmaceutical gardens for grow-
ing medicinal plants in Lubny [3; 4; 5].

After the Battle of Poltava in 1709, the
Russian Tsar made a brief stay in Lubny. He
noticed an advantageous strategic position of
the town. Besides the rich flora and traditions
of the Mhar’s monastery suggested him an
idea to establish a field pharmacy that could
provide troops guarding the south of the state
with medicines.
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Various authors give different dates of
the pharmacy foundation. An indisputable
proof of the pharmacy operation in 1721 is a
document given by a scientist F. F. Isaiev. It is
a complaint of the owner of the house, which

from 1717 till 1767 is another documentary
evidence to the fact that the Lubny pharmacy had
already worked in 1721 [2]. It is a record of Ya.
A. Markovych that states that the first pharmacist
of the filed pharmacy was Ivan Heiter.

Archival documents also prove the fact that
in February, 1725, the peasant Taras “came back
from Lubny and brought medicines from the
pharmacy, 6 items, and it is necessary to pay 3
roubles 99 kopecks to the pharmacy” [4].

In 1736, a Special Government Commission
inspecting the activities of Russian pharmacies
held up the Lubny pharmacy as an example as the
best one.

Thus, the found archival materials definitely
confirm the fact that the Lubny field pharmacy
was established during the life of Peter I, and the
Senate's Decree of September 3, 1733 officially
registered the existing pharmacy.

One can get interesting data on the phar-
macy work from "cataloguses"”, dated back to
1757. They indicated that the pharmacy nomen-
clature included a large group of medicines of the
plant origin. In pure form, it made up 57.7% of
the range of medicines in the pharmacy.

Medicines of the chemical origin in pure
form formed only 8.7%; other medicaments
were chemical mixtures of ingredients of the
plant and animal origin. The pharmacy manu-
factured such compound pharmaceutical
preparations as “Roman mush”, patches (lead,
red, protective and stomach ones), essences
(antiscorbutic, gastric, quinine, etc.), oint-
ments, tinctures, waters [4].

Archival documents show that in a course of
time the Lubny field pharmacy became the centre
of pharmacy and cultivation of medicinal plants in
Ukraine.

It is safe to say that if the supreme mili-
tary authorities had not decided that it was
cheaper to buy medicines abroad and not

initially housed the pharmacy, dated back to

1721 [4].
A personal diary of Yakov Andriyovych
Markovych who lived in Lubny

eliminated “in April 18, 1862, the military
pharmacy in Lubny with botanical gardens”,
the development of pharmacy in Lubny would
had continued.

In Soviet times, All-Union Institute of
Medicinal Plants (VILR) of Ministry of Health
of the USSR worked in Lubny. Along with the
Station of Medicinal Plants there worked the
Factory of Essential Oil Plants Processing
[6:39]. Medicines with Lubny brand, manufac-
tured in the Chemical-Pharmaceutical Factory,
are known both in our country and abroad. In
such a way, the business that was founded at
the beginning of the 18" century in Lubny has
continued to develop.

Conclusion. Based on a thorough study
of archival documents, one could state the es-
tablished assertion that the Lubny field phar-
macy was founded by the Senate order in 1733
needs to be adjusted. The Lubny field phar-
macy had begun its work much earlier, during
the life of Peter | (1682-1725). Analysis of ar-
chived documents proves the opinion of Pro-
fessor Ya. Chystovych that the Lubny phar-
macy was one of the first two field pharmacies
that “were founded in 1716”.

Archival documents show that the Lubny
field pharmacy eventually became the centre of
pharmacy and cultivation of medicinal plants
in Ukraine.

Prospects for the further research:
based on the study of archive documents we
aim to find out the names of the first pharma-
cists, location and administrative organization
of the pharmacy, the most spread illnesses at
the time, and means of their treatment, nomen-
clature of medications, history of the founda-
tion of the pharmaceutical botanical garden in
the town of Lubny.
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